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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Little Compton Common Historic Tistrict is a small area in a some-
what elevated part of the snread-out, rural and seashore township of
Little Comoton in the south-eastern part of Rhode Island and forms the
"headquarters" of the toomship. It is, however, not like most other
New Ensland cormons in that it has no real town or village development--
streets, lanes etc.--surrounding it or radiating from it, though roads
from the countryside parts of the township lead to the Common, skirt it,
or nass close ty. It forms instead an isolated plat which is neverthe-
less the focal noint of Little Compton as a whole.

This Historic District is a long triangular one, with its rase to
the east on a road which comes in from the northern countrvside and
ouickly passes out to further countryside at the south; from this shrort
stretch of roadway two longer streets, School House Lane to the north
of the Common and reeting House Lane to its south, form its »oundaries
and rin down to mcet at the apex of the triangle, from which West Road

Yranches off.

The Common itself is an embanked, flat, grassed area with some
large old trees and, at its west end, some plantings of shruttery; at
its east end stands a conspicuous landmark, the white-painted, spired
United Congregational Church, and akout half of the Common is taken up
by an old, stone-walled turving-ground: there are no other huildings
unon the Common proper. The roadway and the two "Lanes" wthich form the
Cormon's three sides also have large old trees and have a number of

buildines, and another cemetery, facing upon the Common. The rordering
road to the east has a small litrary, two dwellings and some XIX-Century
comrercial tuildings on it; School House Lane to the north has mostly
the township's few public ruildings, while Meetinc House Lane cn the
south side has dwellings, a cemetery anc some shoo and loft huildings,
sore emranked atove stone retaining-iralls.

Surely never heavily-trafficked, the entire Common area is one of
picturesoue quietude, dominated ty the bulk and spire of the Congre-
Fational Church and the grey ranks of vertical old stone rmarkers in the
adjacent turying-sround. The borderine streets, with their various but
not domineering structures, all fortunately well raintained, form a
visually interestins perimeter to the Cormon and are very immortant
parts of the Historic District's totality. This "totality" consists of
only the handsome green Common and less than thirty huildings etc. umnon
it or facing on it (excluding subsidiary structures such as garages,
varns and annexes), and these are listed on an inventory and shoun on
a map which accompany this nomination. A feir rmay te given svecial
mention:

To the cast of the Common (No. 2 on wav) is the Alfred Bodington
house of 1850, a commodions two-and-a-half-storey, garle-roofed resi-
dence in the early Victorian tracketted style. It displays oririnality

(See Continuation Sheet 2,)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Little Compton townshiv's history as a colonial settlement goe
tack to 167 or earlier, and originally it was an Indian domain (Saurh-
konet or Sakonnet) presided over hy a female sachem nared Awashonks,
who ras friendly to the newly-arriving white people trefore, durings and
after King Philip's Yar. Jith her acaniescence, these settlers laid
out and allotted among themselves farmland properties which now fill or
define the towmship, which was at first inc Tuded in the Plymouth (Mas-
sachusetts) Colony tut -:as annexcé to Rhode Island in 170L7. ‘hile this
township is about *wenty square miles in area, its cenire or focal

- point has ever since the 1670's teen that small triangle called Little
Compton common, and here since then has treen the seat of local govern-
ment and the tusiness- and meeting-place of inhebitants from round
about. As a marker at the edge of the Comron informs, a "town house"
or hall where the elders or coiuncil could reet existec there as early

as 1683, and the huryine-ground on the Common is said to date fror

So, this was and is the centre of Little Compton--its only com-
pactly btuilt-upon section, though none of the tuildings upon or around
it is truly "antigque'--in an otrerwise spread-ocut community interlaced
by rural roadwaves or lanes to the seashore and Sakonnet hartour. Cver
three centuries, the *uildings of the Common area have hteen revlaced
many times, so that what we now see are 311 XIX- or XX-Century struc-
tures rather than any rermaining fror Indian War or Revolutionary 'ar
times. There are dwellings, a ovublic school, the To:m Hall, the nost
office, a library, a church, meeting-halls, a little ”1re-hcuse, turo
cemeteries and some modest cormercial structures. This is the place to
which peonle still come to payv their taxes, to nost their mail and *ruy
"General I‘erchandise" at the old shop of "kst. of C. R. Wilbur," and
where the young o to school: it remains the heart of the townshio and,
with its church ané Yurving-ground, a delighting "island" of visual
pleasure in its area.

Here, in the centre of the cemetery on the Common is the memorial
to Elizateth Alden Pakodie, sunnosed to ke the first white woman Yorn
in the tew Ingland colonies, and at the west end of this stone-walled
cemetery are htronze merorial plagues commemorating the war dead of
recent decades; in the Union Cemetery atrove lieeting House Lane stands

(See Continuation Sheet 3.)
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2. Location

Little Compton Common Historic District may be delineated as
follows: Beginning at the northern side of the intersection of
Simmons Road and Willow Avenue the district continues south along
Willow Avenue (which becomes South Commons Road) to the intersection
of South Commons Road and Meeting House Lane. Both Schoolhouse Lane
and Meeting House Lane are included in the district from their
intersection on the east with Willow Avenue and South Commons Road
to their conjunction at the western end of the Common. The district
continues south along West Road for 150 feet from the point where
it turns sharply away from the Common. The boundaries of the
district extend back 150 feet from both sides of the thoroughfares
delineating the district to include the buildings and areas shown on
the district map.
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Representation in BExisting Surveys.

Statewide Survey of Historic Buildings: Little Comnton.
1971 State

Rhode Island Historical Preservation Commission,

John Brown House, 52 Power Strect,

Providence, Rhode Island, 02906.

Description.

in its window treatment and has a fine, ornate cast-iron fence along its
street frontage, and there are cast-iron anthemia interestingly wused as
crestings on the main entrance nworch and across the pnorch of a side ell.

On the same roadwav, south of some 0ld commercial buildines, is the
Ida W. Smith house (Nn. 6 on map), said to date from 1800 originally--
three hays -vide, two and-a-half storeys hich, with the door at one end
of the street elevation. This now prescnts a ladylike Victorian front,
with a one-storey porch supnorted ty sawn, pierced and fretted posts.

The 0ld (Fethodist) Keeting House (No. 8 on map) at the south-east
corner of the Common is a sizeatrle, gatled, two-and-a-half-storey build-

. ing with a lower, later rear ell and dates from 1825. 1llow shingled and

apparently always simply-trimmed, its main decorative feature is a CGreek
Revival entrance porch supported by panelled Doric piers. ~

Quitc dominating the Common is the United Congregational Church (ilo.
7 on map), which to-day has its entrance facing south. Such was not al-
ways the case, for this large claphoarded, gabled structure was built in
1832 in traditional meetine-house form, presumatrly in simple Greek Revival
style: a high, one-storey church auditorium with three tall triple-sashed
windows along each side. Around 1872, however, the meeting-house was
raised to allow for the insertion of a new ground storey; its pulpit-end
was reversed from south to north, and its south end was given a projecting
frontal in vernacular Victorian Gothic style, complete with a bonnetted
brelfry, npon wrich in 187l a tall spire was erected. ‘This church and its
sizeable cemetery area to the west (No. 19 on map), dating from 1675, form
the chief landmark aud visual attraction of Little Compton Common and,
indeed, of the whole surrounding tounship.

Just off the -rest en? of the Common sits the low, long Brownell
hoise of 1823 (No.19 on map) behind ite los stone wall. In its main
portion this is a traditional Rhode Island centre-chimney, storey-and-a-
half, clapboarded cottage five tays wide. However, there is a four-tray
extension stretching to the north, givine a lencthy and picturesque front-
age, and the ends of bhoth the orifinal house and its extension are shingled,
Inside, thc principal stair is unusual for a housc of this modest tyne, for

“Note: doorway is c. 1840, and roof has (See Continuation Sheet 3.)
been replaced.
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7. Description.

instead of taking the usual cramped turn at landinglevel, it *ranches off
there to left and right. This Milfine is to-dav a house rmiscum.

Facing the Common on its north arzs —nst of the townshins's "official”
tuildings, including the Town Hall (llo. 26. on map), a large, rectangular
claptoarded structure of two-and-a-ha2lf ctorevs, tuilt in 1830 in quite
retardataire Viclorian style, it~ chief adornrent being a hocded main door-
way. Hext it (Ho. 25 on map) is the former village schoolhouse, now hous-
ing an American Lepion wost. This dates from 18l:0 and has had some front-
al remodelling, though otherwise it retains its simple and pleacing Greek
Revival aspect and trim, except that the simple, louvred cuvola for the
school-tell at some point received a Victorian tracketted cornice.

8. Sienificance.
a Civil War memnrial.
Pecause Rhode Island amnne the New England states ras few handsome

preen commons, the nreservation of this one, beloved and much acclaimed,
is especially important.
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LITTLE GOMPTON COMMON HISTORIC DISTRICT,  + : % Iy ..
LITTLE COMPTON, RHODE ISLAND. o -'

Inventory of Buildingss.

No. on map.

1. Brovmell Litrary, ty Charles Loring, 1929. Georgian Revival style;
one-and-one-half storevs, four bays wide, gahrle roof, brick wall
cover, entrance in pedimented, vwrojecting wooden vestitrule.

24 Alfred Bodington house, c. 1850. Simple Italianate bracketed style;
three hays wide plus side ell of two rays, two-anc-one-half storeys--
ell slightly lower, garle roofs, clapboard wall cover, central
tracket ted one-storev entrance porch with sauare piers on pedestals,
cast-iron cresting on entrance porch and on porch across front of
ell, cast-iron frontal fence.

3. Commons Restaurant, c. 18110, Simple Greek Revival style, now moder-
ately altered; three bays wide on first floor, two windowrs on second,
gable-end to the street, modern wood-shingle wall cover (probably
replacing claptoards, flat-roofed extension to the north, main en-
trances on west side, extensive old ells to the east facing on a
driveway.

It. Commercial building with apartment atrove, c. 1900. Nondescript style;
four Yrays wide, two-and-one-half storeys, gable roof, bowed and plain
shop-windows on first floor, pseudo-Colonial-style entrance tetween
shop-windows, linked by one-storey connector with No. 5 on map.

e Est. of C. R, Wiltur (store), c. 18L0. Simple Greek Revival style,
moderately altered; three bays wide, two-and-one-half storeys,
gahle-roofed with end to the street, claphoarded, central entrance
between modern, enlarged nlate-glass shop-windows.

6. House, c. 1800 ff. Simvle late Colonial style with Victorian sawn
and bracketted adormments and enlargements (two-storey southern bay):
three tays wide, two-and-one-half storeys, chimney at north end, one-
storey porch with jig-saw work acress front, entrance on west in
southernmost bay.

Te United Congregational Church, 1832, 1872, 187L. Greek Revival style
with Victorian Gothic additions; two storeys (the lower one inserted
in 1872), three bays wide and three long bays from front to back,
gable-roofed with end to the street, clapboarded; originally a plain
me eting-house, revised and enlarred 1872, 187l with "Gothic" frontal
addition, relfry-tover, spire. '

8. 0ld (Methodist) Meeting House, 1825, 1839. Greek Revival style with
addition of Victorian brackets; two-and-one-half storeys, five bays
wide, gable roof, claptoarded, central one-storey front entrance porch
with panelled Doric piers, long two-storev ell at south.



No. on map.

o. "Art Shop," XX Century? Small, one-storey, gable-roofed shed-like
structure, clapboarded.

10. House (now United Congregational Church Parish House), c. 1850-1360.
Victorian bracketted style; two-and-one-half storeys, five bays wide,
gable roof, clapboarded, central one-storey entrance porch, barn etc.
across rear.

11. Cottage, XX Century. DNondescript style; one-and-one-half storeys,
shingled, entrance on north side.

12. Union Cemetery, 1850. Long lot above embankment, enclosed by low iron
fence, numerous grave monuments, Civil tJar Memorial on pedestal.

(j:) House, 1935. Cape Cod cottage style; one-and-one-half storeys, five
bays wide, gable roof, shingled, centre doorway with sidelights on
north side.

14. Cottage, XX Century. Nondescript style; one-and-one-half storeys,
gable roof, shingled, entrance on north side.

15. House, c. 1870. Vlondescript style, two storevs, gablie roof with end
to street, clapboarded.

16. Wheelwright and blacksmith shop (now Pottery Shop), 1870. Nondescript
style; two-and-one-half storey loft building, three bays wide, gable
roof with end to street, clapboarded, entrance near centre of north-
side with large studio window above.

Q;?) Post Office building, 1960. Nondescript-cum-Cape Cod cottage style;
= one-and-one-half storeys, three bays wide with one-and-one-half storey
ell at south-west, clapboarded, shed dormer across front.

18. House, 1860. Early Victorian, one-and-one-half storey, gable roof
with end to street, raised dormers, clapboarded.

19. Brownell House, 1823. Cape Cod cottage style; one-and-one-half storeys,
five bays wide with four-bay extension to the north, clapboarded with
ends shingled, entrance with sidelights in centre of main house, secon=
dary front entrance in extension.

20. United Congregational Church Cemetery or Town Burying Ground, c. 1675.
Partially surrounded by low stone wall, on embanked Common site, numer-
ous thin, old vertical grave markers, memorial plaques in stone wall
and shrubbery plantings at west end.

21. Julia Wilbur School, 1929ff. Pseudo-Georgian style; long one-storey
hip-roofed structure with stone wall cover, modern addition at west,
main entrance within one-storey wooded portico with paired columns on
south front, small central cupola.



No.

on map.

22.

23.

24.

254

26.

Fire House, 1870. Nondescript style; one-storey, gable roof with end
to the street, shingle wall cover, wide frontal door.

Sakonnet Lodge, I. O. O. F. (originally Methodist Church), 1840. Greek
Revival style; two storeys.above a high basement, three bays wide, gable
roof with end to street, clapboarded, panelled corner pilasters, ground--
level central entrance on south with Victorian hood on sawn brackets.

Grange Hall, 1504. Shingle style; two-and-one-half storeys, six bays
wide, gable-and-hipped roof, shingle wall cover, varied window place-
ment, two entrances--one recessed--on south side.

American Legion Post (originally school-house), 1850. Greek Revival
style; one-and-one-half storeys, gable roof with end to streeét,
clapboarded, paired windows at centre front with entrance door to
their right, fanlight in gable, square louvred belfry at front of
building with later Victorian bracketted cornice.

Town Hall, 1380. Simple Victorian style; two-and-one-half storeys,
gable roof with end to street, three bays wide, clapboarded,
central main entrance under bracketted hood with paired windows above.

Cottage, XX Century. Nondescript style; one-and-one-half storeys,
gable roof, shingled, entrance on south side.

Cottage, XX Century. DNondescript style; one-and-one-half storeys,
gable roof, shingled, one-storev porch across front; stands on site
of a burnt XVIIT-Century house, has old barns and sheds at rear.



